MINUTES OF THE

THE CITY OF SANTA FE & SANTA FE COUNTY

BUCKMAN DIRECT DIVERSION BOARD

MEETING

February 1, 2024

1. CALL TO ORDER

This meeting of the Santa Fe County & City Buckman Direct Diversion Board meeting was called to order by County Commissioner Anna Hamilton, BDD Board Chair, at approximately 11 a.m. in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 200 Lincoln Avenue, Santa Fe, New Mexico.

2. **ROLL CALL:** Roll was called and a quorum was present as shown:

BDD Board Members Present:

<u>Member(s) Excused</u>: Tom Egelhoff, The Club at Las Campanas

Commissioner Anna Hamilton Councilor Carol Romero-Wirth Councilor Jamie Cassutt Commissioner Anna Hansen J.C. Helms, Citizen Member

Others Present:

Nancy Long, BDDB Legal Counsel Kyle Harwood, BDDB Legal Counsel Bernardine Padilla, BDD Public Relations Coordinator Delfin Peterson, BDD Administrative Assistant Randy Sugrue, BDD Operations Superintendent Jesse Roach, City Water Division Director Kaitlyn Luck, Egolf + Ferlic + Martinez + Harwood, LLC Jay Lazarus, Glorieta Geoscience, Inc. Peter Hunt, Glorieta Geoscience, Inc. Michaelene Kyrala, Las Campanas Water Cooperative Justin Greene, County Commission Alternate

3. APPROVALOF AGENDA

Commissioner Hansen moved to approve the agenda as published. Councilor Romero-Wirth seconded and the motion passed by unanimous [5-0] voice vote.

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a. Approval of minutes from the January 9, 2024 Buckman Direct Diversion Board Special Meeting

Commissioner Hansen moved to approve the minutes as published. Councilor Romero-Wirth seconded and the motion passed by unanimous [5-0] voice vote.

5. PRESENTATION/INFORMATIONAL ITEMS a. Monthly Update on BDD Operations

CHAIR HAMILTON: Seeing that our Facilities Manager is out, we'll go to Randy Sugrue.

RANDY SUGRUE (BDD Operations Superintendent): Madam Chair, members of the Board, I'll go ahead and do both presentations. Our monthly operational presentation for the month of January 2024, raw diversions averaged about 2.19 million gallons per day. That is now increasing somewhat. Drinking water deliveries through Booster Station 4A/5A was 1.9 million gallons per day. Las Campanas did not divert water for the month of January. Our onsite water storage variation was about 0.25 mgd.

BDD was providing approximately 31 percent of the water supply to the City and the County for the month. Our year-to-date diversions are depicted below. And, again, for the month of January BDD was about 2-million gallons as Canyon Road Water Treatment Facility maximizing their production of 4 million or a bit more in order to lower the reservoir levels.

The regional water overview for the month of January demand was around 6.2 mgd throughout the City. Rio Grande flows for January averaged approximately 500 cubic feet per second. At Canyon Road Water Treatment Facility/Nichols Reservoir was about 70 percent and McClure down to about 7 percent; 18 percent combined in preparation for anticipated snowmelt in the spring. The watershed inflow around 0.7 mgd. SJC storage in Abiquiu is at around was 8,942 acre-feet and for 2024 there have been no SJC allotments that will arise in March or April I believe is when they first make their estimations of the allocations for 2024. That is shown on the graph below the storage of 8,900 acre-feet.

The El Niño/Southern Oscillation Summary of January 15th, of course, El Niño conditions are still observed and that El Niño is expected to continue for the next several seasons. With ENSO neutral favored during April and June. With that, I stand for questions.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Thanks so much. Councilor Romero-Wirth.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Thank you, Madam Chair. ENSO neutral, have I heard of that term?

MR. SUGRUE: It's kind of a balance I think. It's not a strong El Niño generally favors wetter conditions and so it means that the higher temperatures in the Pacific are somewhat loose – and it comes to a neutral whether it's neither an El Niño or La Niña, you might say.

CHAIR HAMILTON: That's an oceanic temperature differential and when there's middle differential like La Niña is the opposite so you have two extremes and there can be years where it is not even or it appears that way. COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: I don't think I've ever heard that term. You learn something new every day.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Any other questions on this. Thank you very much. Let's move on.

b. Report from the BDD Facilities Manager

MR. SUGRUE: I will read through Rick's memo on the Major Repair & Replacement Fund, the Facilities Manager was asked to provide updates as needed on expenditures. There are no major repair and replacement items to report this month; however, we did experience a failure on one of the three raw water pipelines between the diversion and Booster Station 1A. It was not a catastrophic failure but it's a significant leak. We have isolated that line and as the weather warms, we'll move ahead with assessing the repair. We don't have a hard cost estimate but it could well be around \$100,000.

CHAIR HAMILTON: I'm sorry; how much?

MR. SUGRUE: One hundred thousand to excavate and it's not a duct [inaudible] pipe where you could really cut out a piece and put in a new piece. It is highdensity polyethylene so they have to kind of weld it. It's a more complex process to remain. We'll give you, of course, updates as they're available.

This is an unexpected occurrence so it was not included in our MR&R Plan for this upcoming year.

On the BDD rebuild project, the technical working group is working with City Procurement in developing the RF!/RFP process and we will, of course, provide further information as that is updated.

We have current vacancies, there's a total now of five vacancies, three of which have been advertised and two will be advertised early next week so we are moving ahead as expeditiously as we can. I stand for questions.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Excellent. Councilor Romero-Wirth.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Thank you, Madam Chair. Can you tell us which of the three have been advertised and which are going to be advertised.

MR. SUGRUE: They were supposed to all be advertised by today. But the first three have been advertised in the operations positions and show up on the City's website early in the week.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Go ahead, Councilor.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: I'm done.

CHAIR HAMILTON: I thought the finance had been advertised for awhile; so was it just advertised?

MR. SUGRUE: No, I believe you're correct, Madam Chair.

NANCY LONG (BDDB Counsel): Madam Chair, I would just add onto the report on behalf of Mr. Carpenter, I think he intended to also let the Board know that the advertisement for the citizen member and alternate citizen member has now been released and published in the *New Mexican* and we hope will be on all the websites shortly. Our citizen member, Mr. Helms, and alternate citizen member, Mr. Ives, their terms are up this month in February. They do continue to hold over their two-year terms, they do hold over until their successor is appointed. We just need to go through that process of receiving

applications. We hope to have recommendations at the March meeting. The application deadline is February 23.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Okay, great.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Thank you, Madam Chair. I would just like to know about the procurement and the City and the RFQ and RFP; can you tell me where we are in the process? Have they been posted? Have they not been posted? Do we still have to do more with City Procurement? What's the deal?

MS. LONG: Madam Chair, I can answer that question, Board member Hansen and Board members. The technical working group I think as has been reported finalized the RFQ. We received many helpful and productive comments and it was definitely a group effort with Dan Frost at the helm drafting that document. So the RFQ is intended to be phase one of a two-phase process to get qualified firms, probably three qualified firms are what we're hoping for who will then bid on the design-build aspect of the project.

That document has been provided to City Procurement. We did have a meeting on it. They had many questions and we have made a few revisions but we need to get on the same page with them and, in fact, we have a meeting, Dan Frost is coming into town this evening and we have a meeting with City Procurement in person tomorrow to hopefully resolve it and get it out the door so it can be advertised.

CHAIR HAMILTON: And it was actually, just so that you know, several weeks ago that the tech committee turned it over to City Procurement. So it's been in there and working back and forth – just for a little more detail.

MS. LONG: That's correct. So hopefully we'll have more news for you next month that it is out.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: We hope that it is released by then.

CHAIR HAMILTON: We certainly do. And that's the procurement for the design-build. There's also an RFP procurement for –

MS. LONG: An owner's representative.

CHAIR HAMILTON: And that's also with the City.

MS. LONG: That is also at the City.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Are they having similar problems with that or is that just on the list to do.

MS. LONG: That is just next on the list to do but we would like them to go at the same time.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Yes.

MS. LONG: There is no reason to hold that one up. I think that created some confusion because I sent them. I sent them in separate emails to City Procurement but I think we needed to have that first meeting to say, okay, these are two separate procurements but they are related. We did a lot of explaining and got some of their questions answered. So we hope tomorrow will be a very productive meeting.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Excellent. Are there any other questions?

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Clarification. So there is one for design-build and there's one for –

CHAIR HAMILTON: The owner, the Board's project manager.

MS. LONG: For the design-build.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: What's it called?

MS. LONG: It's the owner's representative for the design-build project. So we'll have someone who works on your behalf as the Board's representative to supervise and report and take direction.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: A project manager.

MS. LONG: Essentially, that's what it is. But calling it project manager was getting confusing so we switched to owner's representative. But you're absolutely right that's really what it is. It's a manager for that project.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: It's a glorified project manager.

MS. LONG: That's correct.

CHAIR HAMILTON: They might find that insulting, Hey you, glorified project manager, could you come report to us.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Thank you. I appreciate the information because I feel like we have not been really – we haven't had very much information as the Board. I know the technical working group has been working diligently to get all of this stuff figured out. So thank you.

MS. LONG: Thank you.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Thank you and thanks for that question. It is very important. Are there any further questions on that or the facilities report in general?

c. Presentation and Update on the 2022 Annual Report of the Middle Rio Grande Endangered Species Collaborative Program

CHAIR HAMILTON: As I understand it, you shouldn't even be here today because it's your birthday. [Birthday cheers were expressed]

KYLE HARWOOD (BDDB Counsel): I am pleased to be here on my birthday. I'll take tomorrow off.

Madam Chair, members of the Board, I am here today for an item that we rolled from last fall when we had some very full agendas. If you all remember, we had John Rhoderick come from NMED and we took a lot of time talking about NMED updates and this item got squeezed off of that agenda and then it was also rolled from our December meeting which we cancelled and then our January meeting which got rescheduled but it slimmed down. So that's why the annual report says 2022 because it was printed late last summer/ early last fall when I was going to present it to you in October.

You have copies in your packet and I also got a set of nice printed glossy ones that I put at everyone's tables so you probably have more than enough copies of this. But I just wanted to explain where the annual report came from.

For those of you who don't know, the BDD Board has been participating informally with the Middle Rio Grande Endangered Species Collaborative Program since 2007. More recently, in 2019, I believe it was, the Board requested to be a full executive committee members and the rest of the executive committee agreed unanimously. So Rick is the member and I'm his alternate. And we have generally been very interested in the status of the Rio Grande silvery minnow because part of the Board held environmental permits from the Fish & Wildlife Service, the Forest Service, the BLM have our project tied into the Rio Grande silvery minnow. So the health of the silvery minnow is a material factor for this Board.

And then the late breaking news is that we have three new species that are going to have listing decisions made. Two of the three will have listing decisions made before this summer and the third one before the summer of 2025 and this is a big deal because these three species actually historically had resided above Cochiti. Whereas, the minnow is all below Cochiti, historically it was through the whole stretch but the critical management area for the minnow is below Cochiti so it has a great deal of affect on Albuquerque and the Middle Rio Grande Conservancy District. These three species are above Cochiti species in the tributaries to the Rio Grande. Again, a little bit more background: petitions were filed 10 years ago with the service to review the status of these species. At the beginning of Covid, Wildearth Guardians and some other NGOs actually sued the Service for their failure to follow their own schedule for reviewing the status of the species and making the species listing decision. And the court order that came out from that requires for the Rio Grande chub and the Rio Grande sucker there be a listing decision posted in the Federal Register by this summer. And then for the Rio Grande shiner by July 2025.

Why is this important? It's important because every record of decision has what we call the four reopener clauses which means that our biological opinion may be reopened when there is a new species listed. That is paraphrasing but you get the gist. So we need to be following these three species listing quite closely in order to understand how they may affect the BDD intake project and whether or not our biological opinion will be reopened to review the effect of our project on the species. Now, I am hopeful but cannot guarantee how that process will go. I've been in contact with Fish & Wildlife Service and other partners like Interstate Stream Commission on monitoring this development and there will be more to come in the future but this is the update I have for you today.

So, quickly back to the minnow. We have some very good minnow numbers last year. If you all remember, last year was a very strange hydrology year. There is a critical number and I won't get too far into the weeds on this but the metric for measuring the health of the silvery minnow is an acronym, which I'm burdened by liking acronyms. This acronym is CPUE which is a Catch Per Unit Effort, which is a biological term for how fish you find when you apply a certain process with nets and how many of the fish you find in a 100 square-meter area of the river. I'll stop there. There are numerics that go along with this metric, for example, the relevant metric is .3. If less than 0.3 CPUE Rio Grande silvery minnow are discovered during a catch season, it triggers all sorts of alarm bells under the biological opinion. The only reason I share that number with you is because our number from last fall was 5.68. So you can see we are way above one of the main thresholds.

Hopefully, that's enough detail for today. I'm here to answer any questions you might have about threatened and endangered species.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Thank you. Are there question? Commissioner Hansen.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Thank you, Kyle. Thank you and happy birthday. I just want to say how refreshing it is to hear good news about the Endangered Species Act and collaboration and the program that is happening in New Mexico. I consider it one of the most acts that has happened in the last 50 years to protect our environment. It is the canary in the coal mine, for sure, if we don't keep our biological brothers and sisters healthy, well and alive we're not going to be healthy, well and alive. Thank you. I just wanted to thank you for this. I am so glad to hear about the silvery minnow doing so well. CHAIR HAMILTON: Thank you. Councilor Romero-Wirth. COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Thank you, Madam Chair. Happy birthday. I hope you're going out to dinner or something or maybe your kids will make you dinner.

So I missed the three new species. The chub, something and then the shiner.

MR. HARWOOD: Chub, sucker and shiner, yes, ma'am. And we don't do them any favors with their names. And they're all a lot bigger than the silvery minnow which is small. All the other ones are big but not so big that you would go fishing and eat them.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: And they don't make a good fishing tail. I caught one of these suckers.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Thank you. Any other questions.

6. ACTION ITEMS: DISCUSSION AND ACTION

a. Consideration and Possible Action on a BDD Board comment letter to United States Department of Energy (DOE) Chromium Cr(V1) Interim Measure and Final Remedy Draft Environmental Assessment (Draft EA), Los Alamos, NM

MR. HARWOOD: Thank you Madam Chair. Jay Lazarus and I have collaborated on this. We did have a briefing on your January Board packet to present the topic and get some feedback from the Board before the deadline, but because it dropped off the regular meeting to the rescheduled meeting in January, we are now back tonight with a memo, a technical memo that Jay's going to present and a draft letter for your consideration. Please note the signature blocks are our old Board because I suspect that on the agenda is changes to the leadership potentially and changes to our composition. So just know the signatures are old ones and place holders. Also, to let you know that the deadline for this comment letter is before our next meeting. It is at the end of February but before our March meeting. So we do need action from you this evening on whether you'd like us to send something and what you'd like it to say. And I will let Jay introduce his recommendations and we'll field any questions from there. Thank you.

JAY LAZARUS (Glorieta Geoscience): Thank you, birthday boy. Chair, Board members, thank you for the opportunity. So I'd like to introduce Peter Hunt from our staff. His name is on this memo. Peter does a lot of our heavy lifting. You guys and gals need to know who Peter is.

As a NEPA requirement for part of the chromium remediation at Los Alamos, the Lab went out on a very tight 45-day comment period schedule to provide comments on four different alternatives that they're considering to remediate the chromium. Alternative 1 - 1

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: It's a hexavalent chromium plume.

MR. LAZARUS: No, it's not just hexavalent. It's total chromium and hexavalent is part of it.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: If it was just a chromium plume, we wouldn't be so concerned.

MR. LAZARUS: We're concerned about the hexavalent because of health effects but the way they have it specifically written is "Draft Chromium Interim Measure." That is what comes from the Lab in the NEPA process.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: When I'm in D.C. next week, they're going to hear about it. I feel like it's wrong to call it a chromium plume when it has hexavalent in it, hexavalent chromium that is deadly to human beings.

MR. LAZARUS: No argument from me. I think we understand how the Lab presents things sometimes.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Thank you and thank you, Madam Chair. CHAIR HAMILTON: Yes.

MR. LAZARUS: The first proposed methodology was to continue to pump, treat and reinject. The second proposed methodology was to pump and land apply, meaning sprinkle the treated water on fields. The third proposed methodology was to do an in situ type of treatment and the fourth proposed methodology – and I can't make this stuff up – was just to have natural attenuation and let it sit in the ground as is.

We started getting involved in this years ago at the beginning of Covid 1, if you may, looking at their water rights application for the injection and extraction wells. And we were concerned about depletions on the main stem. As John Rhoderick said at the meeting a few months ago, they're very much in favor of the Lab continuing the extraction but they shut them down because of the injection. Peter has gone through all of the numbers, the meter readings on the injection and the extraction and the Lab is literally reinjecting almost every drop that they're extracting. So they're in balance. But that's what the problem is because they're not inducing a cone of depression. They're just pushing or smearing the plume around with injecting the same amount of water that they're extracting. So, alternative #1 which was continue what they're doing is a no go because it's not working and they're just pushing it around. Alternate #2, which is to pump, treat and land apply will create that cone of depression and allow for hydraulic or hydrologic capture. That is the alternative that we're recommending that the Board recommends before it signs off in this letter to EMLA and the Lab itself. And the one thing we can say is that the treatment system that they're using is effective. It's pulling out all of the chromium and so it's a good system but they just don't have their hydraulics in balance enough to create the cone impression that is needed to actually control this plume. And I'll stand for any questions, any questions about the treatment system or injections – and Pete will be happy to help answer questions too.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Okay, great. Commissioner Hansen.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Thank you, Jay. I basically agree with your recommendation. What I want to know is where could they or where will they spread the water? Once they treat it, the hexavalent chromium and they transfer it back into chromium where can they then deposit this water? That seems to be their breaking point; they don't know what to do with the water except to reinject it.

MR. LAZARUS: Well, they have specifically said that they would look to do a piping distribution system to move the water from the – treated exchange facility, the treatment plant, to these locations or also truck it. Trucking sounds insane. We deal with 4,000, 5,000 gallon liquid manure trucks. You don't get even distribution. It's really labor intensive and putting in the piping for where they're going to land apply is going to be their best most efficient. And they did not provide any maps, Commissioner, of any proposed land, what we call "land application areas." As it's going along, the treatment system is working, the water is clean. So the thing I would be curious about for them is what they're going to do in the wintertime because under the – we manage, our firm manages probably 30 or 40 groundwater discharge permits in multiple states and we can't land apply our effluent, the treated effluent, when soils are either saturated or frozen. So I don't know that there is a detailed plan on what dirt they're actually going to put it onto. What grasses or fields they have and what they're going to do in the winter, if they're going to have storage ponds that may or may not freeze and they haven't gone into any detail which will be their next step. Hopefully, they'll go with alternative #2 that we're recommending that the Board sign off on.

CHAIR HAMILTON: As a follow up to that, how can they get – are these concerns reflected in the letter?

MR. LAZARUS: Yes, ma'am.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Because it's not that the concept of reinjecting was flawed. It's where they put the wells and how deep they put them that's the problem. You have to understand your hydrology and it's the same with land application. You could apply it in poor places, so are they going to be permitted without ever designating their area of application?

MR. LAZARUS: Chair, Board, under groundwater discharge permit, the Environment Department will require maps of the lands that they will be land applying it to.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Okay. Councilor Romero-Wirth.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Thank you, Madam Chair. Let me just make sure I have this straight. So the thing that we're recommending is the second option which is to pump, treat and land apply.

MR. LAZARUS: That is correct.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Okay. But we don't know where they are planning to land apply – where they are planning to apply the stuff that is pumped and treated.

MR. LAZARUS: That is also correct. And then my assumption would be based on permits that we manage for a lot of other folks and other industries is they're going to need monitoring wells or Vadose zone monitoring at their land application fields.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Okay. And I think for me and probably for some other new folks in the room, you said something about being worried about stemmed depletion.

MR. LAZARUS: Main stem.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Main stem depletions; can you talk more about that in this context.

MR. LAZARUS: With the initial extraction and reinjection the aquifer was in the balance. They weren't taking out any more than they were putting back in. So hence no potential depletions on what I call the main stem, on Rio Grande. This way if they're going to have approximately 1,600, 1,700 acre-feet which equates to about 2.2 cfs, which isn't a lot in the river, but – Kyle always makes me nervous when he talks about the biological thing, okay, and every little bit out of the river, you know, is deaths by a thousand cuts. We may not see that 2 cfs in our intake, but overtime as we're seeing less snow pack less runoff every 2.2 cfs is going to count. So we just want them – and then the way they wrote their permit application which they got coached on by State Engineer staff incorrectly. They asked for emergency authorization to pump and then they'll come back with a return flow credit plan later. If we had filled out an application like that it would have never gotten through the front door [inaudible] probably gotten fired. It's illegal not to have your return flow plan right up front. So the State Engineer gave them emergency authorization to do this without an approved return flow credit plan.

MR. HARWOOD: You may remember that both Santa Fe County and this Board protested that application five or six years ago and it is pending.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: It is what?

CHAIR HAMILTON: Pending.

MR. HARWOOD: Pending.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: All right. If they land apply the pumped and treated water then that would then create a cone of depression near the river.

MR. LAZARUS: It would create a cone of depression in their wellfield, in their extraction wellfield which would pull back the water, locally grab the chromium but over time that cone of depression will enlarge until it finally hits the river or the springs that feed the river. Like Sandia Spring is like a 500 gallon a minute spring on the east side of the plateau that discharges to the river. So it will eventually reach out over time.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: And they don't have to have a plan to make that cone whole again, to make the river whole again.

MR. LAZARUS: They do need to have a plan but not today. Whereas, you and I would have needed it yesterday.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Well, also back to your endangered species piece, that has an impact there too, doesn't it?

MR. LAZARUS: That's 5,000 cuts.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: So they don't have to have a plan today, it's just a pending matter?

MR. LAZARUS: Six years at the State Engineer in our world is unfortunate but not short. It is a pending matter. What I would think – I'd like to see what option they're going to pursue and then maybe go to the State Engineer and ask them to start acting on the return flow credit plan and force the Lab to republish. You can't do a return flow credit plan without publishing it so the public has input into it. So we can go back to the State Engineer at that point. I want to know for my technical intake, I want to know what option they're going to proceed with before we go to the State Engineer to ask for action because right now based on injection and extraction equaling each other there's no hit to the river.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Madam Chair, do you address the need for the return flow credit plan in this letter that we're sending?

MR. LAZARUS: Not in so many words. What we say, we continued operation of the ion exchange treatment system with land application of treated water –

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Tell me where you are?

MR. LAZARUS: Last full paragraph, first page of to whom it may concern letter, last full paragraph on that page.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: And what does it start with?

MR. LAZARUS: Based on the analytical data in the DP-1835 quarterly reports from the IX treatment system the Board supports Option 2, continued operation of the IX treatment system with land application of treated water to create the needed cone of depression with the caveat that Rio Grande depletions be fully offset.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Two pages in.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Yeah, I was looking at the wrong letter. Okay, so were there just two options. They can't continue with the current because they're pulling it out, treating it and putting it back in and that's just moving the plume around and that's not good. The second one is to pump, treat and land apply. What were there the others?

MR. LAZARUS: The third one was an in situ type treatment where they would be injecting some kind of oxidants into the aquifer and they haven't really gotten any technology behind that. And the last one was what we call monitored natural attenuation, which means –

CHAIR HAMILTON: Doing nothing.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: The status quo. Let me insert words in the blank. Tell me the technical word again.

MR. LAZARUS: MNA, monitored natural attenuation.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Did you by chance address the issue and I may be wrong but what I understand the problem with pumping, treating and reinjecting is where they're reinjecting. You could reinject closer to the river so that you're not spreading plume around and you're making the river whole. You can do that. Right now what they're doing is taking the water out, treating it and they could put it back in the river maybe if they treated it, but neither of those two options are being considered.

MR. LAZARUS: That's correct. There's land ownership issues with San I

also.

CHAIR HAMILTON: There's always problems but they don't discuss them

in the EA? MR. LAZAH

MR. LAZARUS: This was pretty what I consider to be EA-light. COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Like? MR. LAZARUS: Light, l-i-g-h-t.

CHAIR HAMILTON: It wasn't adequate, light.

MR. LAZARUS: It gave the concepts – they're following the NEPA process which they will have to respond to every comment that is made and then we'll see which option they select.

CHAIR HAMILTON: I guess, I thought the letter was great but now that we're talking about it I'm starting to feel like comment is really, really important with the caveat that Rio Grande depletions be fully offset might be too subtle for them. Do I need to say more before you respond? Do you get my drift?

MR. HARWOOD: One way to deal with that, Madam Chair, is to reference our pending protest of the extraction well system that is pending. Let me just explain the pending a little bit more. For several of the intervening years, it wasn't clear whether this pump, treat and reinject was going to work and that's why we see all the dust up last year with NMED ordering them to stop and that's part of where this EA comes from. So, early on we thought it would have been fairly simple to settle the matter and have them do what everyone else in the state has to do with respect to a return flow plan. Now I think it's good that we didn't try to do that because if NMED directs them to do pump and treat and land apply or something that will have a real effect on aquifer and potentially affect the main stem.

Getting back to this topic, if we think that this is too subtle what we can do, with your permission, is draft a much clearer reference to our pending protest and the issues that we raised there and how we are concerned that certain pump and treat scenarios needs to account for the effects of the regional aquifer and the Rio Grande and make this a little more explicit.

CHAIR HAMILTON: I would very much like to hear what the Board members think and also both of you, if you think there is a reason not to do that, I would like to hear it. I am fine with your recommendations as well.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: I am all for a stronger letter because if it's EA light, we could EA heavy.

CHAIR HAMILTON: That could easily ignore on purpose. They would get it, a technically astute person would get it but they are ignoring things anyway. So that's just the source of my concern.

MR. HARWOOD: All right.

MR. LAZARUS: As much as we wanted to keep it to one page we can add a

CHAIR HAMILTON: Thank you. And I also commend you for catching all of this stuff.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: And then, Madam Chair, if you're going to make it a little longer you can actually put the paragraph spaces in between the letter. At the end of the third paragraph there should be a paragraph space and then right after "fully offset" there should be another paragraph space.

MR. LAZARUS: We could do that.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: It will add a little bit to it but I think we can still keep it front and back.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Commissioner Greene had a question then Councilor.

COMMISSIONER GREENE: Happy birthday first off. Thank you. And it's wonderful to be on the BDD even as an alternate it is an honor.

First, pardon me for a little bit of my novice-ness to this but how long is it expected to take to cleanup? Decades, hundreds, perpetuity?

MR. LAZARUS: Not in perpetuity. But we're seeing some indications in our lingo that the upgrade in monitoring well of this plume is increasing in concentration. So that could be a result of, there might be more mass of total chromium in the system that was anticipated or that the reinject is somehow pushing it back up gradient. But the mass loading on the aquifer of the contamination – it's a big question right now because they're reinjecting really good quality water. What they're doing is just pushing the plume around.

COMMISSIONER GREENE: So using my rudimentary physics and hydrology, if you pull it out and you don't put it back in, that negative then might suck more down towards the river.

MR. LAZARUS: And that's what we're asking them to offset, Commissioner. COMMISSIONER GREENE: And how – without reinjecting, how would we

offset that?

paragraph.

MR. LAZARUS: They would have to come up with – when we do water rights applications of groundwater we look at effects on the nearest surface water body. Very often it is retiring farm land, so many acres of such and such consumptive use depending what basin you're in. So they would have to go out and they would either have to permanently commit to 2.2 cfs maybe of Los Alamos County-San Juan Chama water because they're part of the application or they would have to find water rights in the Middle Rio Grande to offset their depletion of effects on the river.

COMMISSIONER GREENE: So part of my concern is that by not reinjecting at least in a strategic position in a spot to, you know, stabilize the aquifer there, if this is a

negative void there, right, for sucking stuff out. They are sucking stuff from a plume that is further away from the Rio Grande closer to the especially if there's more up there that we don't know about and it is then progressing down there.

CHAIR HAMILTON: No, I think there's a misconception – you don't have a good geographic picture. Part of the reason sucking it out and reinjecting it balances and is spreading plume out, leaving the cone of depression is an acceptable temporary mitigation because it's holding and it becomes a hydrologic barrier and Jay or Peter could maybe explain it a little. It's keeping it.

MR. LAZARUS: You're making a funnel. So you can funnel in the aquifer and everything is flowing down gradient or downhill in the aquifer towards the funnel. We like the funnel because it's capturing the contamination.

COMMISSIONER GREENE: I like the funnel too. I'm just scared there's a secret source above the funnel that we're now making a faster path to that. So it's just a concern and maybe it's like – if there's more in another location that it could end up exacerbating it and there may be some other treatment that needs to be done up above at the source.

CHAIR HAMILTON: You can't regulation on mystery sources. You have to know what we have. But you can – one of the reasons it would deplete the river of 2. whatever cfs is because it's sucking from the river toward the –

COMMISSIONER GREENE: Absolutely. I understand that. I understand that. But it is also sucking from the plume, wherever that is, because that's a proven direction where it's actually running to from the plume to where the sucking is. So this is my concern about not treating the plume at the same time.

CHAIR HAMILTON: You are treating the plume. You're sucking the water

MR. LAZARUS: If I may. They are treating the plume. We just don't know if the mass of contamination in the plume has been fully defined.

COMMISSIONER GREENE: That's my concern, right. That it's a mystery plume. I think one of the aspects of the letter that could be put in there for clarification is the disingenuous nature that the Commissioner mentioned about the differences of chromium, right. That please don't classify this as chromium when there are two types of chromium, or maybe more, but that there's some that is going to kill us and some that is maybe benign and so on. To actually show some clarification in that and that we are showing that they're trying to hide a little bit of that.

And then another concern about the land application is that if you put land application right above the plume you're just pushing water into the aquifer and it may stabilize it but it seems like it would be, you know, exacerbating by pushing it down and around and the same thing. So some level of moving it away into a spot that people know is not contaminated would be a better solution than applying it, right, where it is sucked out of the ground and then you're just pushing the plume around.

MR. LAZARUS: Peter and I do a lot of land application of nutrients in different areas and other treated water. And we plan our application so the water doesn't percolate below the root zone.

COMMISSIONER GREENE: Sure. And then lastly, some mention of the endangered species that it could affect. That there is this potential, and maybe not. because that may open another can of worms or a can of fish. CHAIR HAMILTON: I am not sure we want to make recommendations – COMMISSIONER GREENE: Well, we may not.

CHAIR HAMILTON: That's for the Board but as an alternate you are free to ask questions.

COMMISSIONER GREENE: Yeah, so anyway just putting it out there. Maybe that's something that the Board wants to take under advisement. But I'm just new here and I'm interested in you opening up a can of worms. So thank you very much.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Thank you. Councilor.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: So you mentioned and I guess since we're talking about what should be in this letter and I completely agree that it should be short and sweet and targeted, there might be other things you want to have them consider that they're not maybe identifying at the moment And since they have to answer every comment is it worth making a few suggestions? You said something, I think you were talking about injection and where you do that and how you do. Maybe I misunderstood you. Maybe that wasn't the nature of the things that they're not really thinking about that maybe they should be.

MR. LAZARUS: Councilor, the way that we could add something there, that we'd like a map of their proposed land application areas and where their proposed monitoring wells will be.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Okay.

MR. LAZARUS: I think that to comply with the terms of their groundwater discharge permit.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Okay, yeah.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Thank you. Michaelene.

MICHAELENE KYRALA (Las Campanas Water Cooperative): I quick

thing.

CHAIR HAMILTON: By all means.

MS. KYRALA: Aside from the other changes that are being made, could the letter possibly updated to correctly reflect the entities that make up BDD?

CHAIR HAMILTON: Yes.

MS. KYRALA: That would be wonderful. Thank you.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Yes, thank you. Other comments or questions? Do we need to make a motion to accept this with the changes as discussed?

MS. LONG: Yes, Madam Chair. You're looking for action.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Hold on. In terms of the signature plate, these are the voting members.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Yes, but the signatures are going to have to be – we can assure that in the body of the letter that describes the BDD that this is accurate.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: I don't want to cause confusion about who is making decisions and who is making these recommendations and comments and I think we need to be careful about how our governance structure works.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Exactly, purely the voting members of the Board on the signature blocks.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Okay, thank you.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: I think she was referring to the first paragraph. CHAIR HAMILTON: Yes.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Okay, so I make a motion, Madam Chair, to accept the letter with all the suggested changes that the Board has given you and to add a few things to make it more detailed. And what is the date – what is the deadline for this letter?

MR. LAZARUS: The third week of February sometime, the 24th, but before the next meeting.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Madam Chair.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Yes, Councilor.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: I do think that -

CHAIR HAMILTON: I have a motion. Can I get a second then we can do that under discussion or –

MR. HELMS: Second.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: You got a second.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Oh, I did. I missed that. Okay, so under discussion,

Councilor.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Somebody needs to review these changes prior to releasing it.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: I think we all have to sign it anyhow so it'll be sent to us.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Right, but I don't want to get a bunch of cooks in the kitchen because we're not going to meet again and I don't think we can conduct business – we'll get a rolling quorum problem.

CHAIR HAMILTON: I would suggest the next chair review the letter. COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: And I'm happy to have the chair and vice

chair.

CHAIR HAMILTON: That's fine too.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Just so we have representative. CHAIR HAMILTON: Is that acceptable to everybody? Yes, Councilor

Cassutt.

COUNCILOR CASSUTT: Thank you so much. I just want to make sure that I understand. I noted two changes that were mentioned. One, to have stronger language about the impertinence of making the river whole again. And then the second asking for a map about where the land apply would occur in the monitoring wells. Did I miss any other changes that were discussed? I want to make sure I know what I'm voting on.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Yes, I also requested editorial changes of spacing and then Michaelene requested that besides limited partner of Las Campanas, I believe what she wants is it says, Las Campanas Club and Las Campanas Coop.

COUNCILOR CASSUTT: Thank you for clarifying.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: But, Madam Chair, maybe we could get a summation from the folks that are going to be writing this just to make sure.

MR. LAZARUS: And then the other addition was to make sure that they understand that it is Chromium III and Chromium VI.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Yes, I would completely support that.

MR. HARWOOD: Councilor Cassutt, there are four changes.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Great and does anybody else recall any other changes. Would you mind going through all four listed changes for the record. MR. LAZARUS: The first one is to make sure then understand the difference between total Chrome III and hexavalent chromium. The other one which I'm not sure because I thought we had it covered with the members of the Board being City, County and Las Campanas.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Just to be clear on that since you don't understand it. There are two entities in Las Campanas. There is a Las Campanas Club and there is a Las Campanas Coop Sewer and they are separate entities. In the beginning it was one entity but then it divided. So I'm just being clear.

CHAIR HAMILTON: My suggestion is that we let Nancy advise them and make sure that is corrected about how to word that.

MR. LAZARUS: And we want a map of their proposed land application areas and where their groundwater monitoring wells or Vadose zone monitoring points will be. We want a detailed reference to the application that we protested and talked about main stem offsets even though previously they didn't need it because injection was equaling extraction.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Okay and the editorial changes.

MR. LAZARUS: The typos.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Not typos: spacing.

MR. LAZARUS: Spacing.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Does that sound good to everybody? Excellent. So I have a motion and a second, all those in favor. Any opposed or abstentions?

The motion passed by unanimous [5-0] voice vote.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Thank you for the detailed and good work on this because you caught a lot of things. We very much appreciate it.

MR. LAZARUS: Thank Peter.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: And Madam Chair, I just want to say that this is the kind of thing that we should be weighing in on. I appreciate having this in advance where we can talk about it and we can make sure we understand it and we can add value in what ultimately gets submitted. So I just want to say I really appreciate how we're working here and I think it's a difference than we have seen in the past. And I just want to validate that and highlight it and say, Yea Team.

b. Election of Chair and Vice Chair of the Buckman Direct Diversion Board

CHAIR HAMILTON: Nancy, I'll let you start us off.

MS. LONG: Madam Chair and members of the Board, at your February meeting you elect a chair and vice chair for the Board. The Joint Powers Agreement that governs the Buckman Direct Diversion Board provides that the election shall be done annually. And the chair and the vice chair will rotate each year so that the County representative will be the chair one year and the vice chair shall be from the City which is what we had this last year. So this year, we will have elections to elect a chair from the City representatives and the vice chair will be from the County.

COUNCILOR CASSUTT: I nominate Councilor Romero-Wirth to be chair for this year.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Thank you. COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Second. CHAIR HAMILTON: Any discussion. I have a motion and a second.

The motion to elect Councilor Romero-Wirth as BDD Board chair passed by unanimous voice vote.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Congratulations and my condolences and chocolate is always advised. Those are my words of wisdom.

COMMISSIONER HANSEN: Madam Chair, normally Commissioner Hamilton and I have switched off being vice chair but I do feel because of Commissioner Hamilton's work on the technical working group that it would be advantageous for her to stay as the person working on the technical working group plus she doesn't serve on hardly any other committees at the County so therefore she can give her full attention and dedication to this Board along with the rest of us.

So I nominate Commissioner Hamilton and I want to say for history since I have such a long history with the BDD but I do remember when Rebecca Wurzburger and Virginia Vigil were chair and it went back and forth between the two of them numerous times so this is not an unusual situation to have happen with the BDD. And I also have to admit that my plate is really quite full and so I think this is a really good solution.

COUNCILOR ROMERO-WIRTH: Second.

The motion to elect Commissioner Hamilton as BDD Board vise chair passed by unanimous voice vote.

7. MATTERS FROM THE PUBLIC

CHAIR HAMILTON: Is there anyone from the public wishing to speak? I don't see anybody in the chambers and no one on line.

8. MATTERS FROM THE BOARD

CHAIR HAMILTON: Matters from the Board, yes, Commissioner Hansen. COMMISSIONER HANSEN: On that topic, speaking of a digital connection and having that available, I would like to suggest because it is also incredibly difficult at the convention center and here for the City to be able to somehow do digital meetings, that there's some investment by the City in the ability to do digital and video meetings in the future. If we could have that option so that the public has that ability to participate when they cannot come down here. I think it is important for transparency.

CHAIR HAMILTON: Thank you. Other Board members? Well, I just wanted to mention aside from another happy birthday to Kyle Harwood and thank you for spending your time with us, I was hoping to have a report, and we had spoken at the last few meetings but we missed a couple because of snow and insufficient business, from the City Finance on progress on splitting out the BDD account. So I think – I just wanted to say that. And we had committed of course to make regular report outs on the progress on the RFQs as well. Thank you.

9. NEXT MEETING: Thursday, March 7, 2024 at 4:00 p.m.

10. ADJOURN

Having completed the agenda and with no further business to come before the Board, Chair Hamilton declared this meeting adjourned at approximately 5:15 p.m.

Approved by:

Carol Romero Wirth, Board Chair

Respectfully submitted:

Karen Farrell, Wordswork

ATTEST TO

GERALYN F. CARDENAS INTERIM CITY CLERK



Date:	March 7, 2024
To:	Buckman Direct Diversion Board
From:	Randy Sugrue, BDD Operations Superintendent
Subject:	Update on BDD Operations for the Month of February 2024

ITEM:

- 1. This memorandum is to update the Buckman Direct Diversion Board (BDDB) on BDD operations during the month of February 2024. The BDD diversions and deliveries have averaged, in Million Gallons Per Day (MGD), as follows:
 - a. Raw water diversions: 3.38 MGD.
 - b. Drinking water deliveries through Booster Station 4A/5A: 3.21 MGD.
 - c. Raw water delivery to Las Campanas at BS2A: 0.0 MG
 - d. WTP Onsite water storage variation: 0.17 MGD Average. (Average gain or loss per day to the 12MG WTP onsite storage.)
- 2. The BDD is providing approximately 51% percent of the water supply to the City and County for the month.
- 3. The BDD year-to-date diversions are depicted below:



4. Regional Demand/Drought Summary and Storage-see page 2.



Regional Water Overview

Daily metered regional water demand for the month of February 2024 is approximately 6.5 MGD.

Rio Grande flows for February 2024 averaged approximately 675 CFS (cubic feet per second.)

CRWTP reservoir storage: Nichols: 64%/McClure: 6% (16% combined) Watershed Inflow: 1.8 MGD

City/County/LC Storage- as updated by partners. As of February 20, 2024 City of SF Abiquiu SJC storage is at about 8,660AF.

As of July 1, 2023 the City of Santa Fe has been allocated 5230AF of 5230AF and SF County 375AF of 375AF of SJCP water.



ENSO Summary

February 20, 2024

El Niño conditions are observed.*

Equatorial sea surface temperatures (SSTs) are above average across the

central and eastern Pacific Ocean.

The tropical Pacific atmospheric anomalies are consistent with El Niño.

A transition from El Niño to ENSO-neutral is likely by April-June 2024 (79%

chance), with increasing odds of La Niña developing in June-August 2024 (55% chance).



Buckman Direct Diversion

Buckman	Direct Div	ersion Moi	thly SJC and 1	Native Diver	sions			
Feb-24				In A	Acre-Feet			
Month	Total SJC + Native Rights	SP-4842 RG Native COUNTY	SD-04842-A RG Native VIA SFC LAS CAMPANAS	<mark>SJC Call</mark> Total	SP-2847-E SJC Call CITY	SP-2847-N-A SJC Call LAS CAMPANAS	SP-2847-E SJC Undiverted CITY	All Partners Conveyance Losses
JAN	283.691	91.173	0.000	192.518	192.518	0.000	0.000	1.986
FEB	321.580	107.193	0.000	214.387	214.387	0.000	0.000	1.345
MAR	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
APR	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
MAY	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
JUN	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
JUL	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
AUG	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
SEP	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
OCT	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
NOV	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
DEC	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
TOTAL	605.271	198.366	0.000	406.905	406.905	0.000	0.000	3.331
			n Million Gall SFC Native				SJC	All
	Month	Native COUNTY	Las Campanas	<mark>SJC</mark> Total	SJC CITY	SJC Las Campanas	Undiverted CITY	Partners Diversions
	JAN	29.698	0.000	61.974	61.974	0.000	0.000	91.672
	FEB	34.916	0.000	69.833	69.833	0.000	0.000	104.749
	MAR	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	APR	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	MAY	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	JUN	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	JUL	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	AUG	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	SEP	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	OCT	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	NOV	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	DEC	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	TOTAL	64.614	0.000	131.807	131.807	0.000	0.000	196.421



Buckman Direct Diversion

Buckman	Direct Div	ersion Mor	nthly SJC and	Native Diver	sions			
Dec-23				In A	Acre-Feet			
Month	Total SJC + Native Rights	SP-4842 RG Native COUNTY	SD-04842-A RG Native VIA SFC LAS CAMPANAS	<mark>SJC Call</mark> Total	SP-2847-E SJC Call CITY	SP-2847-N-A SJC Call LAS CAMPANAS	SP-2847-E SJC Undiverted CITY	All Partners Conveyance Losses
JAN	202.766	170.639	0.000	32.127	32.127	0.000	0.000	0.316
FEB	198.863	198.863	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
MAR	298.509	283.752	0.000	14.757	-0.183	14.940	0.000	0.148
APR	539.513	456.749	68.929	13.835	13.835	0.000	0.000	0.050
MAY	594.828	462.276	132.552	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
JUN	584.178	458.973	125.205	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
JUL	775.090	29.584	0.000	745.506	600.980	144.526	0.000	3.448
AUG	691.219	0.000	0.000	691.305	661.055	30.250	0.086	3.300
SEP	543.466	0.000	0.000	548.792	488.899	59.893	5.325	2.629
OCT	450.861	0.000	0.000	462.141	409.826	52.315	11.280	4.339
NOV	305.383	0.000	0.000	310.512	297.964	12.549	5.129	3.046
DEC	201.257	0.000	0.000	214.254	214.254	0.000	12.996	2.142
TOTAL	5,385.935	2,060.836	326.686	3,033.229	2,718.756	314.473	34.816	19.417
			in Million Gall SFC Native				SJC	All
	Month	<mark>Native</mark> COUNTY	Las Campanas	<mark>SJC</mark> TOTAL	SJC CITY	SJC Las Campanas	Undiverted CITY	Partners Diversions
	JAN	55.583	0.000	10.347	10.347	0.000	0.000	65.930
	FEB	64.776	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	64.776
	MAR	92.427	0.000	4.752	-0.059	4.819	0.000	97.179
	APR	148.778	22.453	4.484	4.484	0.000	0.000	175.714
	MAY	150.579	43.176	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	193.755
	JUN	149.503	40.783	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	190.286
	JUL	9.636	0.000	240.180	193.965	46.562	0.000	249.817
	AUG	0.000	0.000	222.731	213.366	9.764	0.028	222.731
	SEP	0.000	0.000	176.814	157.483	19.331	1.735	176.814
	OCT	0.000	0.000	148.909	132.288	16.887	3.674	148.909
	NOV	0.000	0.000	100.009	95.960	4.049	1.671	100.009
	DEC	0.000	0.000	68.993	68.993	0.000	4.233	68.993
		671.282	106.412	977.219	876.827	101.412	11.341	1,754.914





Date: March 1, 2024

To: BDD Board

From: Rick Carpenter, BDD Facilities Manager

Re: BDD Facilities Manager Monthly Update to the BDD Board

Item and Issue

Below is the monthly update from the BDD Facilities Manager for the March, 2024 Board meeting:

- <u>Major Repair and Replacement (MR&R) Fund</u>. The BDD Facility Manager is to provide updates as needed on MR&R fund expenditures or other major expenditures on projects. There no MR&R items to report this month.
- <u>BDD Re-Build Project Progress</u>. The Technical Working Group is working with City of Santa Fe Procurement in developing the RFQ/RFP process and will provide further information as available.
- <u>Current Vacancies</u>. The following positions are vacant/open and currently advertised:
 - Journeyman Electrician (closed 1/26/24, list of eligible candidates is pending)
 - o Automation and Security Technician
 - o Accounting Supervisor
 - Water Operator Intermediate
 - Water System Operator Basic





City of Santa Fe Water



801 W. San Mateo, Santa Fe, N.M. 87505 www.santafenm.gov/water

Jesse Roach PE PhD, Director

Director Rick Carpenter, BDD Facility Manager John Del Mar PE, Engineering Manager Jonathan Montoya, Source of Supply Manager Mike Moya, Transmission and Distribution Manager Bill Schneider PG, Water Resources and Conservation Manager

MEMO

Date: February 23, 2024

- To: BDD Board of Directors
- Via: John Dupuis, Public Utilities Department Director John DUpuis (Feb 23, 2024 10:49 MST)
 Rick Carpenter, BDD Facilities Manager
 From: Jesse Roach, Water Division Director

<u>ACTION</u>

Information and Discussion of Proposed Increase to BDD Operations Budget to Support 1/3 of costs for an Operations Superintendent who would spend the equivalent of 4 months per year supporting BDD.

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY

The City of Santa Fe Public Utilities Department (PUD) manages three water treatment plants, two for potable water and one for wastewater. In all three plants 14 or more water operators are managed by an Operations Superintendent. For BDD this Operations Superintendent is Randy Sugrue. In an effort to provide backup, cross training, idea transfer, and experienced employees with good understanding of PUD treatment plants who are positioned well to step in to manage any of the three facilities either temporarily or as candidates when those positions are vacated, PUD has added a "floater" Operations Superintendent who will spend approximately 4 months per year at each plant and can provide supervision at any plant when the primary Operations Superintendent at that plant is absent.

Depending on across the board cost of living adjustments that may be recommended by the City Finance Department, the total annual FY2025 budget required for this new position is currently estimated at \$154,718, or \$51,573 per plant. Tentatively the floater Operations Superintendent will focus time at BDD from July through October so no BDD funding to support this position will be necessary until FY2025.

<u>REQUEST</u>

Informational only, approval for a recurring increase of up to \$55,000 in the BDD annual budget is included in the proposed FY25 operations budget.

		CITY	OF SAN	TA FE			
		NEW Positi	on Budg	et Analysi	s ¹		
(All gold fields MUST be	e filled out)						
Date of Request:	12/1/2023		Su	ıbmitted By:		Jesse Roach	
Department:		Public Utilities		Division:		Water	
Org Code:	5000	367		Perce	ent Charged: ²	100.0%	
	24				(100% = FT): ³		•
Proposed Range:	21			FIE 70	(100% = FT):	100.0%	
# of Effective Pay Periods (1 to 26): ⁴	20		Proposed	ć 50.120	14/	ithin Range? ⁵	TDUE
Periods (1 to 26):	26		Hourly:	\$ 50.130	vv	ithin Range?	TRUE
UNION STATUS:		Total Annu	al Hours:	2,080	<u> </u>	<u>nnual</u> Salary:	\$ 104,270
NON-UNION							
SALARY/BENEFITS -	\$ IMPACT					Amounts	to Budget
Description	<u>Object</u>	<u>Increas</u>	e / (Decre	<u>ase)</u>			
Salaries	500110	\$	104,270				
FICA/Medicare	503100	\$	7,977				
Retirement (PERA)	503150	\$	23 <i>,</i> 500				
Med/Life	503200	\$	15,313				
Retiree Health Care	503250	\$	2,085				
Workers' Comp	503350	\$	1,043				
Dental	503400	\$	530			For Budge	t Use <u>Only</u>
TOTAL		\$	154,718			Budget Log #	
Comments/Justificatio	n (use multiple	e lines below if n	eeded):				
,			,				
The City of Santa Fe Public	c Utilities Depar	rtment (PUD) runs	three wate	er treatment pla	ants, two for po	otable	
water and one for wastew	vater. In all thre	ee plants 14 or mo	ore water op	perators are ma	anaged by an		
Operations Superintender	nt. In an effort	to provide backup	, cross trair	ning, idea trans	fer, and experi	enced	
employees with good und	lerstanding of P	UD treatment pla	nts who are	positioned we	ell to step in to	manage	
any of the three facilities	either tempora	rily or as candidate	es when the	ose positions a	re vacated, PUI	D would	
like to add a "floater" Ope	erations Superir	ntendent who spe	nds approxi	mately 4 mont	hs per year at e	each	
plant and can provide sup	ervision at any	plant when the pr	rimary Oper	ations Superin	tendent at that	t plant is absent	t.
Pending BDDB budget app	proval this posit	tion will be funded	l 1/3 by wat	ter 1/3 by wast	ewater and 1/3	3 by BDD.	
Department Director A	pproval (signa	ature)		Budget Appr	oval (signatu	re)	



Date:	March 7, 2024
To:	Buckman Direct Diversion Board
From:	Rick Carpenter, BDD Facilities Manager
Subject:	Proposed Fiscal Year 2025 Annual Operating Budget Request

ITEM AND ISSUE:

Request for approval and recommendation of the BDD Annual Operating Budget & Other Fund Contributions for Fiscal Year 2025.

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY:

BDD is pleased to present the proposed Buckman Direct Diversion (BDD) Annual Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 and proposed contributions to the Major Repair & Replacement Fund. The proposed budget accounts for all projected necessary costs to meet the Board's service level objectives and to continue to provide high quality water to our partners, the City of Santa Fe, Santa Fe County, the Club at Las Campanas and the Las Campanas Water and Sewer Cooperative.

The BDD actively collaborated with its partners on the development of this budget, and with their support, we present this budget request.

Budget Highlights & Considerations:

- Requesting budget approval of \$8,512,347 for FY 2054 Operations (Page 2) •
 - \$8,282,847 Partner Reimbursements
 - \$120,000– PNM Solar Rebate Revenue 0
 - \circ \$96,000 Federal Funds
- FY 2024 Budget Request increased by \$221,794 from the FY 2024 Adopted Budget (Page 5)
- Emergency Reserve Fund is fully funded to our target balance of \$2,000,000 (Page 9)
- Major Repair & Replacement Fund \$1,935,019 requested contributions. (Page 10)





ACTION REQUESTED:

Staff recommends approval and recommendation of the BDD Annual Operating Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 and the requested contributions to our Major Repair and Replacement Fund to City of Santa Fe's City Council and Santa Fe County Board of Commissioners.

We look forward to presenting the proposed budget and addressing your comments and questions.

Thank you

Approved by BDDB March 7, 2024

Carol Romero-Wirth, BDDB Chair



Buckman Direct Diversion FISCAL YEAR 2025

Proposed Annual Operating Budget & Partner Contributions



Prepared by: Rick Carpenter, BDD Facilities Manager



BUCKMAN DIRECT DIVERSION REGIONAL WATER PLANT ORGANIZATIONAL CHART





Buckman Direct Diversion (BDD) Proposed Annual Operating Budget for FY25

Budget Message

The *Project Management and Fiscal Services Agreement* (PMFSA) requires the Project Manager to submit an Annual Operating Budget. With this submittal, the Project Manager requests the Buckman Direct Diversion Board (BDDB) approve and recommend the Fiscal Year 2025 Operating Budget of \$8,512,347.

Budget Revenue/Reimbursement Summary

TOTAL PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2025 OPERATING BUDGET

TABLE A

		Fixed	<u>Variable</u>	<u>Total</u>	<u>%</u>
Revenues/Reimbursements	oy So	urce:			
Federal Funds	\$	96,000	\$ -	\$ 96,000	1%
PNM Solar Rebates		-	120,000	120,000	1%
City of Santa Fe		4,457,887	1,220,860	5,678,747	67%
Santa Fe County		1,740,375	543,129	2,283,503	27%
Las Campanas (Club)		210,105	55,515	265,621	3%
Las Campanas (Coop)		68,476	-	68,476	1%
Total Revenues by Source	\$	6,572,843	\$ 1,939,504	\$ 8,512,347	100%
% of overall budget		77%	23%	100%	

This budget request consists of fixed and variable costs and includes revenue/reimbursements from several sources. The principle operating revenue of BDD's operating budget is reimbursements from the partners for the cost of operations.

BDD was granted federal funds from the Department of Energy for the BDD Storm Water Sampling Program. This funding will be used for the collection of samples from the Rio Grande at the BDD in order to make determinations on the water quality of the river during LANL events.

The monthly PNM solar rebates received for the water treatment plant solar array are also accounted for as a source of revenue. The resulting reimbursement requests for American Capital Energy (primary owner of this solar array) to the City of Santa Fe and Santa Fe County will be reduced by the revenue received.

The partner reimbursement revenue is estimated based on projected expenditure types and allocated based on the cost sharing allocations established in the governing documents. Partners are billed in accordance with the BDD Working Capital and Billing Policy.



Budget Expenditure Summary

The Buckman Direct Diversion budget consists of seven major categories as presented below. These categories are used to track expenditures for reporting and monitoring our available budget balance. In accordance with our BDD Working Capital and Billing policy, any budget adjustment requests between major categories require board approval. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred and are reported in BDD's main enterprise fund.

Expenditure by Category:	<u>City of</u> <u>Santa Fe</u>	<u>Santa Fe</u> <u>County</u>	Las Campanas (Club)	<u>Las</u> <u>Campanas</u> <u>(Coop)</u>	<u>Federal</u> <u>Funds</u>	<u>Total</u>
Personnel	\$ 2,829,448	\$ 1,079,024	\$ 118,104	\$ 52,851	\$ -	\$ 4,079,428
Electricity	1,024,036	375,007	58,603	3,985	-	1,461,631
Chemicals	313,263	110,237	-	_	-	423,500
Solids	61,601	21,618	-	-	-	83,219
Materials & Supplies	486,307	198,455	26,496	9,667	-	720,925
Other Operating Costs	880,925	371,182	46,378	1,972	96,000	1,396,457
Fiscal Agent Fee	231,887	99,261	16,040	_	-	347,188
Total	5,827,466	2,254,784	\$ 265,621	\$ 68,476	\$96,000	\$ 8,512,347
PNM Solar Rebates	(88,764)	(31,236)				
Total	\$ 5,738,702	\$ 2,223,548				





CHART 1



Budget Summary & Highlights

In Fiscal Year 2025, the BDD will be in its fourteenth year of operations. The BDD also uses yearly volumetric flow predictions provided by each partner for our variable and project wide allocation of expenditures.

The BDD has collaborated with its partners on the development of this budget and with their support; we present the Fiscal Year 2025 budget request with the following changes:

• The proposed annual operating budget for fiscal year 2025 is \$8,512,347, which represents a 2% increase from the adopted FY2024 operating budget.

Closing the gap between actual expenditures and budget was considered in the development of the annual operating budget request. This will continue to be a factor, to ensure funds are properly expended for the purposes as requested.

- Fiscal Year 2019 Actual Expenditures \$7,882,811 (with 11 vacant positions and \$255,212 of unexpended litigation fees) which was \$1,251,813 lower than the adopted budget.
- Fiscal Year 2020 Actual Expenditures \$8,665,134 which was \$1,031,275 lower than the adopted budget.
- Fiscal Year 2021 Actual Expenditures \$8,686,832 which was \$76,883 lower than the adopted budget.
- Fiscal Year 2022 Actual Expenditures \$7,695,417 which was \$1,147,292 lower than the adopted budget.
- Fiscal Year 2023 Actual Expenditures \$7,063,226 which was \$1,172,554 lower than the adopted budget.



Fiscal Year 2025 Operating Budget Request



Budget Comparisons

Table C presents actual expenses by major category for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. The change in the fiscal year 2025 operating budget request in comparison to the current 2024 adopted budget. There was an overall increase in the budget estimate of \$221,794, which is an increase of 2% from the adopted budget. This increase is due to projected salary and benefit increases. We are also projecting an increase in materials and supplies and other operating costs. The new debt solar payment and credits have been accounted for in the electricity line, which represent a small decrease. We are also recommending an increase to the Major Repair and Replacement Fund based on the Major Repair and Replacement Annual Plan for FY2025 (Table K).

The BDD staff will continue to work with its partners in determining the costs and funding needed to ensure BDD properly operates and maintains the facilities to meet the demands of its partners.

		FY 2023	FY 2023					
	FY 2023	Unaudited	Variance \$		FY 2024	FY 2025	FY 2025 \$ Change	
	Adopted	Actual	(Under) /		Adopted	Proposed	FY 2024 vs	
	Budget	6/30/23	Over Budget	%	Budget	Budget	FY 2025	%
Revenues/Reimbursements	by Fund:				_			
Partner Reimbursements	\$ 8,019,780	\$ 6,813,641	(1,206,139)	85%	\$ 8,074,553	\$ 8,296,347	\$ 221,794	3%
PNM Solar Rebates	120,000	220,434	100,434	184%	120,000	120,000	-	0%
Federal Funds	96,000	29,151.00	(66,849)	30%	96,000	96,000	-	0%
Total	\$8,235,780	\$ 7,063,226	\$ (1,172,554)	86%	\$ 8,290,553	\$ 8,512,347	\$ 221,794	2%
Expenditures by Catagory:								
Salaries	\$ 2,405,427	\$ 2,197,392	\$ 208,035	91%	\$ 2,503,551	\$ 2,594,916	\$ 91,365	4%
Overtime	230,000	270,030	(40,030)	117%	230,000	230,000	-	0%
Benefits	1,149,581	985,565	164,016	86%	1,211,331	1,254,511	43,180	4%
Electricity	1,450,000	1,165,916	284,084	80%	1,550,000	1,461,631	(88,369)	-6%
Chemicals	385,000	413,230	(28,230)	107%	423,500	423,500	-	0%
Solids	83,219	105,204	(21,985)	126%	83,219	83,219	-	0%
Materials & Supplies*	737,114	459,070	278,044	62%	617,661	720,925	103,264	17%
Other Operating Costs*	1,243,540	1,098,845	144,695	88%	1,325,516	1,396,457	70,941	5%
Litigation Costs	257,000	73,075	183,925	28%	-	-	-	0%
Total	7,940,881	6,768,327	1,172,554	85%	7,944,778	8,165,159	220,381	3%
Fiscal Agent Fee	294,899	294,899	-	100%	345,775	347,188	1,413	-1%
Total	\$8,235,780	\$ 7,063,226	\$ 1,172,554	86%	\$ 8,290,553	\$ 8,512,347	\$ 221,794	2%

BUCKMAN DIRECT DIVERSION OPERATING BUDGET

TABLE C



Budget Fixed & Variable Costs Analysis

The BDD's annual operating budget consists of fixed, variable and project-wide costs. These costs are allocated by percentages contained in the Facility Operations and Procedures Agreement (FOPA). This budget request was prepared with the following cost sharing principles.

Cost Sharing

			8	1 A	ABLE D
<u>Fixed</u>	<u>City of</u> Santa Fe	<u>Santa Fe</u> <u>County</u>	Las Campanas (Club)	Las Campanas (Coop)	<u>Total</u>
Shared Facilities (CCL)	62.09%	25.61%	5.37%	6.93%	100.00%
Separate Facilities (CC)	75.33%	24.67%	-	_	100.00%
<u>Project Wide</u>					
Projected Volumetric Flow (PW)	66.79%	28.59%	4.62%	-	100.00%
<u>Variable</u>					
Projected Volumetric Flow (CCL)	66.79%	28.59%	4.62%	_	100.00%
Projected Volumetric Flow (CC)	73.97%	26.03%	_	_	100.00%

Annual volumetric flow predictions provided by the partners are also used as the basis for project wide costs and variable costs that are primarily related to chemicals, electricity, and solids management.

Volumetric Flow History and FY 2025 Predictions

TABLE E

TADIED

Volumetric Flow			LC (Raw Water)	Las Campanas	
<u>(acft)</u>	City of Santa Fe	Santa Fe County	<u>via County</u>	(Raw Water)	Total Diverted
FY 2019	3,300.96	1,207.86	423.08	102.35	5,034.25
FY 2020	3,435.42	1,314.08	156.08	493.44	5,399.02
FY 2021	5,141.85	1,398.75	334.23	159.73	7,034.56
FY 2022	4,465.50	1,270.61	321.83	-	6,057.94
FY 2023	3,007.65	981.17	326.99	73.37	6,873.40
FY 2024	3,733.73	1,557.11	300.00	300.00	5,890.84
FY 2025	3,878.20	1,364.52	296.00	268.38	5,807.10
FY 2025 %	66.78%	23.50%	5.10%	4.62%	100%
% Percentage is us	ed in calculation o	f partner share (CCI	L) of variable costs	& project wide	



Volumetric Flow History

BDD has completed a budget analysis for fiscal year 2025, which includes volumetric predictions of 1,891,564 gallons. This is an estimated 1.4% decrease in water delivery thru BDD over fiscal year 2024 predicted water call. The BDD will continue to work with the partners to adaptively manage BDD water deliveries to meet changes in partner demands.



Total gallons delivered vs. volumetric predictions





Programs

The BDD is divided into seven (7) key programs with explicit business functions. Each Program was developed to support specific goals and objectives. These business activities encompass all functions necessary to operate the water treatment plant, maintain full regulatory compliance, execute Fiscal Agent responsibilities, and optimize infrastructure investments through comprehensive asset management.

The expenditure budgets for these seven key programs are presented below. Total program funding includes all employee wages and benefits for full time equivalent employees and associated overhead expenses. These key programs incorporate all business expenses necessary to execute core business functions and allow the reader to understand how limited resources are allocated within the budget.

Strategic Goals – Supported by program resources

- Operations To ensure the highest standard of water quality, using the most efficient and up to date water production methods.
- **Regulatory** To maintain and improve LANL/DOE monitoring program.
- Maintenance To equip the staff with the tools and equipment to efficiently and effectively maintain and repair the assets of the BDD.
- **Safety & Training** To promote and assure workplace safety and health in preventing workplace injuries.
- Administrative Services To operate and maintain the BDD within budget and in accordance with the governing documents.
- **4** Information Systems To maintain and support all automation and security systems.
- **Public Relations** To coordinate, create and support key events for the BDD outreach program.

BDD Operating Budget – by Program

TABLE F

Program	<u>Amount</u>	Percentage
Operations	4,182,378.43	49%
Regulatory Compliance	441,097.72	6%
Maintenance	1,596,826.78	19%
Safety and Training	175,215.13	2%
Administrative Services	1,635,358.50	19%
Information Systems	378,765.30	4%
Public Relations	102,705.18	1%
	\$ 3,888,870.89	45%



Emergency Reserve Fund (ERF)

The Project Management and Fiscal Services Agreement, Article 3. (E.) requires the BDD Board create an Emergency Reserve Fund, and establish procedures for its management. The Emergency Reserve Fund provides immediate reserves for unforeseen or catastrophic infrastructure failures that render facilities unable to deliver water at the needed capacity. The Project Manager, in consultation with the partners, must submit to the BDD Board an analysis of the funds required for an emergency reserve and suggest procedures for creation of and management of the Emergency Reserve Fund.

The BDD Board approved the Emergency Reserve Fund policy and funding contributions as part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget request. This policy established target balances, replenishment requirements and funding allocations.

Emergency Reserve Fund Balance					TABLE G
Emergency Fund	City of Santa Fe	Santa Fe County	Las Campanas Club	Las Campanas Coop	Balance
Fund Balance at June 30, 2023	1,363,984	486,676	132,328	105,009	2,087,997

As of June 30, 2023 the Emergency Reserve Fund remained fully funded to its targeted balance of \$2,000,000. As per the BDD Working Capital and Billing Policy, these funds are interest bearing and are allocated to the partners based on the percentage of cash held in their respective accounts at the end of each fiscal year.

Major Repair and Replacement Fund (RRF)

The BDD Board also approved the Major Repair and Replacement Fund as part of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget. Per the Major Repair and Replacement Fund policy these funds are to receive yearly contributions held in reserve to support major repair and replacement costs of facility equipment and systems.

The BDD Board has authorized expenditures of \$2,961,007 for repair and replacement of system equipment in accordance with the policy, Table J. These authorizations, upon expenditure will reduce the available balance in this fund. The Major Repair and Replacement fund will continue to receive annual contributions in accordance with the approved plan. The BDD is requesting contributions of \$1,935,019, based on the expenditure plan listed on the next page, Table K.

Major Repair and Replacement Fund Balance

			Las	Las	
	City of	Santa Fe	Campanas	Campanas	
Major Repair & Replacement	Santa Fe	County	Club	Соор	Balance
Balance as of June 30, 2023	2,502,497	874,457	63,825	73,332	3,514,111
2024 Contributions per approved plan	1,270,791	446,353	30,716	39,640	1,787,500
2024 Funds authorized for expenditure	(2,105,074)	(739,387)	(65,663)	(50,882)	(2,961,007)
Projected Fund Balance	1,668,214	581,423	28,878	62,090	2,340,604

Major Repair and Replacement Fund Fiscal Year 2024 Contributions

TABLE I

			Las	Las	
	City of	Santa Fe	Campanas	Campanas	
Major Repair & Replacement	Santa Fe	County	Club	Соор	Balance
2025 Proposed Contributions	1,375,667	483,190	33,251	42,911	1,935,019

With the approval of this contribution and no additional authorizations, the fund balance will be \$4,275,623 for fiscal year 2025.



TABLE H



Major Repair and Replacement Fund Plan

TABLE J

FY24 Funds Authorized						
15 Month MR&R Plan	Projected Cost	<u>Total Cost</u>	Justification	Status		
RW KSB Pump Project	220,000.00	228,233.38	Replacing failed pump	Completed in FY2023 - Alpha Southwest		
Mini Split Replacement ATF (HVAC)	17,000.00	15,457.05	Failed units need replacing	Completed in FY2023 - B & D Industries		
		243,690.43	FY2023 Expenditures			
Replace Media in GAC Contactor	350,000.00	281,100.00	Media is exhausted	Encumbered -Calgon Carbon Corp		
Install of Microza Filter Cartridges	264,000.00	989,037.82	End of expected life span	Encumbered - Trojan Tech Group		
Replacement of VFD Centrifuges	173,000.00	172,416.00	Failed, parts discontinued	Encumbrered - Andritz Separation		
Replace Modine Unit in ATF HVAC	51,000.00	50,827.97	Failed unit needs replacement	B & D Industries		
F350 Truck Replacement	75,000.00	75,000.00	Replacing failed unit	Project Pending		
1A & 2A Pump and Motor Project	490,000.00	499,625.00	Replacing failed pump	Project Pending - Alpha Southwest		
PLC Replacement (5 units)	750,000.00	750,000.00	Current model obsolete	Project Pending		
Annual Camera Replacement (10 units)	20,000.00	20,000.00	Failed Cameras need replacing	Project Pending		
Surge Tank Bladder Replacement (3 units)	60,000.00	60,000.00	Failed need replacement	Project Pending		
Building UPS' replacement (7 units)	63,000.00	63,000.00	Required update	Project Pending		
		2,961,006.79				

TABLE K

FY25 Requested Contribution							
	15 Month MR&R Plan	<u>Cost</u>	Quantity	Total Cost	Justification		
1	BS1A Valve Project	15,000.00	3	45,000.00	Failed valves need replacement		
2	BS1A Ball Valve Rebuild	2,000.00	3	6,000.00	Failed valves need replacement		
3	BS1A Isolation Valves	20,000.00	4	80,000.00	Failed valves need replacement		
4	Membrane Module Replacement	4,755.00	104	494,519.00	End of expected life span		
5	GAC Replacement	145,000.00	1	140,500.00	Media is exhausted		
6	Camera Upgrade	260,000.00	1	260,000.00	Required update		
7	Building UPS' Replacement	9,000.00	4	36,000.00	Required update		
8	PLC Replacement	150,000.00	5	750,000.00	Current model obsolete		
9	Surge Tank Bladder Replacement	20,000.00	3	60,000.00	Failed need replacement		
10	Building UPS' replacement	9,000.00	3	63,000.00	Required update		
				\$1,935,019	FY25 Requested Contribution		



Budget Summary

With this submittal, the Project Manager requests the Buckman Direct Diversion Board approve and recommend the funding for our Fiscal Year 2025 Operating Budget of \$8,512,347 with the annual contribution of \$1,935,019 for the Major Repair and Replacement Fund, for a total request of \$10,447,366. We appreciate the input and support from our partners and our Buckman Direct Diversion Board Members.

Fiscal Year 2025 Funding Allocation

TABLE L

Funds	Cit	ty of Santa Fe	Santa Fe County		Las ampanas (Club)		Las ampanas (Coop)	Total
Operating Fund	\$	5,738,702	\$ 2,210,048	\$	265,621	\$	68,476	\$ 8,282,847
				PI	NM Solar R	lebat	e Revenue	120,000
						Fede	eral Funds	96,000
					County Co	nser	vation Fee	13,500
								\$ 8,512,347
Major Repair & Replacement Fund			 102 100		22.051		10.011	1.005.010
	_	1,375,667	 483,190		33,251		42,911	 1,935,019
Total Fiscal Year 2025 Request	\$	7,114,369	\$ 2,693,238	\$	298,872	\$	111,387	\$ 10,447,366

Memorandum



Date:	March 7, 2024
To:	Buckman Direct Diversion Board
From:	Nancy R. Long
Subject:	Approval of Committee Members for the Appointment of Citizen Member and Alternate Citizen Member

Item and Issue:

Approval and appointment of committee members for the appointment of citizen member and alternate citizen member to the Buckman Direct Diversion Board ("Board").

Background and Summary:

The Joint Powers Agreement, as amended, establishing the Board, provides for the appointment of a citizen member and alternate citizen member to the Board by a majority vote of the four other voting members of the Board. The term of the citizen member and alternate citizen member is two years and the current terms for both the citizen member and alternate citizen member expired on February 1, 2024; however, the members continue in their positions until their successors have been appointed.

Five applications have been received for the citizen member positions on the Board. It is now timely to approve the committee to interview the applicants. The committee will then make its recommendation to the Board for the two positions. Past selection committees have included the Chair, the Vice-Chair, the Facilities Manager, and the Board attorney. It is recommended that the same positions serve on the current selection committee. The committee will then consist of: Chair, Carol Romero-Wirth, Vice-Chair, Anna Hamilton, Facilities Manager, Rick Carpenter and Board attorney, Nancy Long.

Action Requested:

Approval of the committee members for the citizen member and alternate citizen member interviews and subsequent recommendations for the positions to the Board.



